A TOOLKIT FOR EMERGING BIOTECHS

Practical Advice For Navigating Challenges & Advancing Clinical Development



MEDPACE

TABLE OF CONTENTS

MODERN BIOTECHNOLOGY: AN ERA OF INNOVATION	3
EMERGING BIOTECHS, THE TRAILBLAZERS OF DRUG DEVELOPMENT	4
CHALLENGES FOR EMERGING BIOTECHS: WHAT'S KEEPING YOU UP AT NIGHT?	6
SURVIVING IN A HIGHLY COMPETITIVE INDUSTRY	6
FACING A HIGH LEVEL OF UNCERTAINTY	7
CONFRONTED WITH FUNDING ISSUES	7
PUTTING TOGETHER THE RIGHT TEAM	7
CONSIDERATIONS FOR EMERGING BIOTECHS: THE CRITICAL TIME BETWEEN	
PRE-IND & FIRST IN-HUMAN	8
DEFINING AND ADHERING TO A STRATEGY	8
WORKING WITH THE REGULATORY AUTHORITIES	9
FINDING A SUITABLE PARTNER	10
COMMUNICATION	10
EXPERIENCE	10
FLEXIBILITY	11
RELATIONSHIPS	11
GOVERNANCE	11
THE COLLABORATION MOMENTUM OF MODERN BIOTECHNOLOGY	12
THE MEDPACE SOLUTION	13
LIST OF REFERENCES	14



MODERN BIOTECHNOLOGY: AN ERA OF INNOVATION

Biotechnology is a key driver of innovation in the life sciences industry. With advances in immuno-oncology, gene and cell therapies, and microbiome therapeutics as examples, the global biotech industry was valued at \$794B in 2021, and is further estimated to reach a market value of \$1,684B by 2030^[1]. Globally, there are more than 10,000 biotech businesses employing close to a million people^[2].

The ongoing success of the biotech industry is not only revealed by its market value, but also by numerous achievements in recent years. Over the past five years, the FDA has approved an average of 51 drugs per year, up from 24 drugs per year a decade ago. In 2021, 50 new drugs were approved, most of which were designed for the therapeutic areas of oncology, neurology, infectious diseases, and cardiovascular diseases^[3]. That same year saw the approval of the 100th antibody as well as the first KRAS- and HIF-2 α -targeted therapeutics for cancer.

The highlight of 2021 was the landmark approval of the first mRNA vaccines. The Pfizer-BioNTech COVID-19 vaccine Comirnaty[™] gained full approval in August 2021, just 1.5 years after the program was initiated. This set a new precedent, as vaccine discovery and development usually takes 10.7 years on average^[3]. Comirnaty sales raked in \$36.9B, making it the top-selling drug of 2021^[4].

Several Nobel Prizes have also been awarded for discoveries that have proven indispensable for the biotech industry. In 2018, James Allison and Tasuku Honjo were awarded the Nobel Prize for Physiology and Medicine for their discovery of checkpoint inhibitors, which has led to the development and approval of cancer drugs that release the checkpoint brakes on the immune system^[5]. Half of the 2018 Nobel Prize for Physics went to Arthur Ashkin for designing a laser that can be used to precisely manipulate molecules in cells, while one part of the Nobel Prize for Chemistry was awarded to George Smith and Gregory Winter for developing the phage display technique for the creation of novel antibodies^[5]. More notably in 2020, Emmanuelle Charpentier and Jennifer A. Doudna were awarded the Nobel Prize in Chemistry for their breakthrough research on CRISPR-Cas9 as a gene-editing tool^[6].

Biotech and innovation are closely linked. Since the 1950s, modern biotechnology has brought us monoclonal antibodies, novel vaccines, immunotherapies, and more. Found at the forefront of the biotech industry are large biotech and pharma companies such as Celgene, Gilead, Amgen, Pfizer, Roche, and Novartis^[7]. Behind the scenes, however, are thousands of emerging biotech companies driving innovation and success.

\$794 Billion Global Industry valued in 2021

~**\$1,684 Billion** Global Industry projected value in 2030

10,000+ Biotech businesses

~**51 Drugs** Per year have been approved by the FDA over 5 years

50 New Drugs Were approved in 2021



EMERGING BIOTECHS: THE TRAILBLAZERS OF DRUG DEVELOPMENT

Throughout the history of modern biotechnology, emerging biotechs have left their mark and supported large pharma companies along the way. Genentech, for instance, started small, but now employs 14,000 people. In the late 1970s the company only had 12 employees. At the time, only six years after being founded, Genentech supported Eli Lilly in the development of synthetic "human" insulin; this was the first-ever genetically engineered human therapeutic and was approved in 1982^[8].

Another example in which an emerging biotech company supported pharma can be found in the success story of Humira[®] (adalimumab). In the 1990s, Greg Winter's Cambridge Antibody Technologies (CAT), with approximately six employees at the time, teamed up with BASF Bioresearch Corporation to develop the first fully human monoclonal antibody^[9]. Adalimumab was approved by the FDA in 2002 for the treatment of rheumatoid arthritis. Today, it is one of the best-selling drugs worldwide, registering sales of \$20.7B in 2021^[4], coming in second behind the COVID-19 vaccine Comirnaty. Consequently, CAT and its breakthrough discovery became one of the UK's greatest biotech success stories^[9].

Defined as companies spending less than \$200M annually on R&D and with less than \$500M in revenues, emerging biotechs continue to thrive. They are currently responsible for 65% of molecules in the R&D pipeline, up from one third in 2001, and have patented half of the new active substances approved by the FDA in $2021^{[10]}$.

Emerging biotechs work at the forefront of science, often venturing into the unknown where there is little or no real-world data to work with or regulatory frameworks to work within. Though this harbors a high risk, if successful, it comes with a high payoff both in terms of patient benefits and financial gain.

For instance, more and more companies are focusing on orphan drug development: in 2019, 31% of medicines in the pipeline were targeting rare diseases, up from 18% in 2010^[11]. There are more than 700 medicines in development in the US to address the unmet needs of 30 million Americans suffering from rare diseases^[11], and of the 50 FDA-approved new active substances in 2021, 52% carried orphan drug designation^[3].

R&D Pipeline Molecules



Emerging biotechs continue to thrive as they are currently responsible for 65% of molecules in the R&D pipeline^[10].

However, developing orphan drugs is associated with many challenges, including complex science, small patient populations, difficulties collecting relevant data, and complicated logistics^[12]. Despite this, emerging biotechs have been frontrunners in the orphan drug space, and only recently has large pharma entered the rare disease market. In fact, the term "orphaning" was coined to reflect the disinterest of large pharma, as developing these drugs was not seen as lucrative^[13].

This increase in activity in the orphan drug space is mainly due to the efforts regulatory bodies in the US and EU have put in place to make this area of drug development more attractive: providing fast track programs, market exclusivity, reduced regulatory fees, tax reductions, and other benefits for those companies working on orphan drugs^[12].

But it is not only orphan diseases that have received more attention from emerging biotechs. As of March 2021, more than 95% of the anti-infection/antimicrobial drugs in the pipeline were being developed by emerging biotechs, with 70% of the companies considered pre-revenue. This follows on the heels of large pharma mostly exiting the market and the launch of the AMR Action Fund in 2020 that aims to invest \$1B in startups pursuing new antibiotics^[14].

Although large pharma companies remain important partners for emerging biotechs, often co-launching drug candidates in an attempt to mitigate risks, more and more emerging biotechs are partnering with each other: in 2021, 62% of deals were partnerships between emerging biotechs; the remaining 38% involved large/mid companies, which is down from 51% in 2016^[15].

Together, these numbers show that emerging biotechs are slowly taking control of their drug development processes and assets, rather than relying on big pharma companies^[4]. Large pharma companies seem to be becoming less influential in originating molecules, as emerging biotechs are increasingly taking their candidates from discovery, through development, all the way to commercialization alone^[4].

In this competitive industry, emerging biotechs are confronted with various challenges, especially in the early stages of compound development. This white paper will discuss the challenges biotechs face and solutions to successfully emerge from the competition with a drug candidate.





CHALLENGES FOR EMERGING BIOTECHS: WHAT'S KEEPING YOU UP AT NIGHT?

The biotech industry is a complex and challenging environment in which many small and emerging biotech companies struggle to gain a foothold. It is a fate that is practically inevitable. After all, these companies are working to develop novel treatments for barely understood diseases with highly complex and novel science. However, being aware of the challenges along the way can help emerging biotechs avoid devastating setbacks.

Although emerging biotechs face numerous challenges on their way to market, there are four key issues that highlight drug development in the biotech space. These include the competitiveness of the biotech and pharma industry, the possibility of unexpected complications, issues with finances, and the effect the team has on the outcome of projects.

SURVIVING IN A HIGHLY COMPETITIVE INDUSTRY

"At this moment, we are trying to develop treatments that haven't been defined, with science that has yet to be tested, to treat diseases that we are only now beginning to understand," Reinilde Heyrman, MD, Senior Vice President of the Medical Department at Medpace, describes the current state of the biotech industry.

Rising drug development costs, a steadily accelerating race to collect impactful data, increasing knowledge of the epidemiology of diseases, growing competition for suitable trial sites, and a generally crowded market, are all factors that shape the highly competitive landscape of the life sciences industry.

Although the numbers are still disputed, most people in the industry agree that the costs for drug development have greatly increased in recent decades, with the launch price of cancer drugs almost doubling over the last two decades^{[16][17]}. The estimated cost to develop a single new drug can range anywhere from \$161M to \$4.5B, depending on therapeutic area^[18].

These numbers show that a drug's failure can set a company back a long way. This is especially true for emerging biotechs, who often only have one or two compounds in development. If these are unsuccessful, the financial burden involved can be enough to result in the company's failure. Consequently, companies are constantly working to collect impactful data and increase their knowledge of the epidemiology of diseases.

Once the preclinical stage has been successfully completed, the race for finding suitable clinical study sites begins. Site selection can be a lengthy process, however, it is essential to the success of the trial. Sloppiness in deciding on the clinical trial location can negatively impact the outcome of a study. Selecting the wrong site can lead to poor patient recruitment and low-quality data, which can cause severe delays and become very costly^[19].

FACING A HIGH LEVEL OF UNCERTAINTY



"Uncertainty is a habit of new things. We are developing treatments that haven't been defined, with science that hasn't been tested, for diseases we barely understand. Managing uncertainty and mitigating risk are part of the work biotech and pharma companies do."

- Reinilde Heyrman, MD, Chief Medical Officer, Medical Department

Within this competitive industry, emerging biotechs face a great level of uncertainty. There is a high likelihood of unexpected complications cropping up along the way. With only a small number of compounds in development, each step towards success and every failure are greatly amplified. Uncertainty follows emerging biotechs throughout the drug development process, starting at the root of scientific knowledge, from which the compound is based. As emerging biotechs often try to tackle unmet medical needs, they are moving in areas of science that have not yet been fully understood. This brings with it a high level of risk and increases the probability of failure^[20].

In an environment that changes from day to day, emerging biotechs are also confronted with technical, financial, and market-related uncertainties^{[20][21]}. They rely heavily on a complicated network of stakeholders, including large pharmaceutical and financial players. Failure to reach the predefined milestones in preclinical and clinical development can result in a loss of crucial funding^[20].

CONFRONTED WITH FUNDING ISSUES

Funding is the lifeline of emerging biotech companies. The high costs of drug development force emerging biotechs to fundraise several times during the drug development phase. Whereas tech companies, for instance, can bring a product to market in a few months, biotechs need a number of years of spending before their product can even become profitable^[18]. And even after all that time, the risk that the product will not succeed is extremely high^[18].

Gaining funding at the beginning, predicting the correct budget for the clinical development program, and building a comprehensive strategy is therefore especially hard. "Investors tend to present funding once certain milestones are reached and data emerges. This can oftentimes present challenges to small and emerging biotechs in long-term development planning and execution," explains Caitilin Hamill, Ph.D., Vice President of Regulatory Affairs at Medpace.

If an emerging biotech fails to achieve its set goals or does not make a comprehensive plan, it risks losing its investors' trust^[22]. Planning ahead and aligning the timing of fundraising with the different clinical development milestones is a tricky business and can only be achieved with the right team.

PUTTING TOGETHER THE RIGHT TEAM

Emerging biotechs can lack the necessary workforce to take their compound through all stages of drug development. "Emerging biotechs usually only have a small team of people, so recruiting and retaining talent is an ongoing challenge," says Heyrman. Additionally, the success of the emerging biotech can rise and fall with its management. As such, the management team needs to retain a good relationship with the company's shareholders. Not only does this influence later funding rounds, but it also affects the dynamics of the team. The management can benefit from the shareholders' expertise, so together they can build a team adapted to the fast-paced environment of the biotech industry^[22].

The small size of emerging biotechs also means that a decision has to be made regarding the type of work that will be outsourced and kept in-house. "As drug development is multifactorial, it requires expertise in a number of focus areas, including chemistry, nonclinical, clinical, and regulatory," Hamill explains. "Smaller companies without these resources are left to rely on consultants. This can lead to misalignment of the strategy and a lack of continuity in execution across the program."



CONSIDERATIONS FOR EMERGING BIOTECHS: THE CRITICAL TIME BETWEEN PRE-IND & FIRST IN-HUMAN

Although emerging biotechs face the challenges discussed above, there are several steps they can take to mitigate the associated risks. As a biotech's drug development program not only includes the in-house team but also external experts, advisors, investors, and other partners, it is crucial that the biotech develops an overall strategy that can be followed and understood by all of the shareholders involved.

DEFINING & ADHERING TO A STRATEGY



"What I often see is a desire to run before one can walk. There are different phases in drug development, and over the years, these phases have been tested over and over. So, there is evidently a good reason why these phases exist."

- Reinilde Heyrman, MD, Chief Medical Officer, Medical Department

By defining a strategy early on in the development process, emerging biotechs can mitigate potential risks and challenges. Foreseeing these can help the company to act before they arise.

Therefore, while developing their strategy, biotechs should always keep their end goal in mind, whether that is a certain fundraising round or the registration of the compounds^{[23][24]}. "Building a strategy and executing it with an end goal in mind will allow for marketing in the desired patient population, for the desired indication, at the desired dosing regimen," says Hamill.

Furthermore, defining a goal will help the research team understand and anticipate the different inflection points during drug development^{[23][24]}. "Biotechs need to be very smart," says Heyrman. "They should think carefully about what they can accomplish, what kind of data can be acquired, and what answers need to be provided before moving to the next phase. This also requires a certain degree of patience." Patience is a keyword. While many emerging biotechs may feel the urge to skip certain stages of the project to save time and money, the careful step-by-step acquisition of data lowers the risk of failure and decreases the chances of having to go back and revisit specific experiments, which can cost time and money.

"In the end, it is not only about how well the strategy is defined within a company, but also how well that company is capable of adhering to that strategy," says Heyrman. "After all, to be successful it is not sufficient to set up a plan, it also requires a certain discipline to follow that plan."



"It is extremely important that emerging biotechs give themselves sufficient time in the planning stages. So many biotechs put themselves under time pressure and rush during the planning phases, developing a suboptimal protocol that then requires multiple revisions. This wastes time, energy, and money."

- Nicholas Alp, MD, PhD, FRCP, FACC Senior Vice President, Medical Department

Taking enough time to develop plans and protocols is essential. During the planning stage, companies should make sure their protocol is scientifically focused and operationally feasible. They should discuss the protocol and clinical development plan with the right authorities, and consult subject matter experts on the proposed scientific and operational strategy.

Heyrman adds: "What delays studies is actually the pharmaceutical development. Biotechs should ask themselves what is needed for a clinical trial? Do they have everything they need so the trial can start on time? Is the clinical supply available? Does the product have a long enough shelf life so that if there is a slight delay, it can still be used for the trial? All of these questions need to be asked during planning stages to anticipate and mitigate risks to save time."

Moreover, clinical development plans should be compared and carefully checked with the preclinical work. Here, it is important to make sure that the animal data can be compared with and extrapolated to human data. "The rule is to fail early and fail cheaply," says Heyrman. "If there are any signs from the animal data, or from the literature for this class of compounds or for this kind of disease that there is a risk to humans, then the right experiment needs to be set up in humans allowing for a decision to go forward with the compound or not." Including a scenario for unexpected findings in the clinical development plan is therefore essential.

WORKING WITH THE REGULATORY AUTHORITIES

Another way for emerging biotechs to increase their chances for success is by starting a dialogue with the regulatory authorities early on in the drug development process, especially when developing advanced therapies^[25]. This is an important step in the process, because going down the wrong path can waste time and money.

Therefore, in order to communicate with the FDA or other regulatory bodies, emerging biotechs should have a realistic understanding of their project's capabilities and limitations, including those technical areas that fall under specific regulatory considerations^[25].

As more and more new disease areas arise, the development of novel medicines increases. However, while regulations are slowly adapting to these new medicines, they may not be adapting as quickly as the science and the understanding within the scientific world. This makes working in a regulated environment essential^[21]. For companies with no regulatory experts in the team or who are new to the process this can be quite challenging. Here, an experienced, global partner with intimate knowledge of the necessary regulatory frameworks is vital.





FINDING A SUITABLE PARTNER



"The right CRO can offer a full partnership rather than an 'extra set of hands'. Given the limited resources of smaller and emerging biotechs, this can be crucial for the success of many areas of drug development."

- Brad Hansman, Vice President, Site Activation & Maintenance

Teaming up with a suitable partner and finding the right lab space, sites, and experts is crucial to increasing chances of success for emerging biotechs. A Contract Research Organization (CRO) can help these companies to maximize internal resources, accelerate development processes, and drive efficiency^[26]. While emerging biotechs are focused on their next funding round, for instance, the CRO is responsible for running and overseeing the current study. A transparent collaboration between the two can enhance the design and execution of trials.

A PARTNER SHOULD HAVE THE FOLLOWING KEY STRENGTHS... COMMUNICATION

The relationship built between a biotech and its CRO partner must be built on a foundation of trust. As emerging biotechs are relatively small, they need to be able to rely on their partner to execute studies almost independently while they focus on other issues^[27]. To maintain a high level of independence, the emerging biotech should make sure that it communicates openly and the CRO has understood its compound strategy and its goals.

When scouting for a partner, the emerging biotech should ask itself whether a collaboration between the two teams can work. "Find a partner who will not deprioritize you because of your small size or limited immediate pipeline," says Andrew Masih, Vice President of Clinical Trial Management at Medpace. "Then, form a collaborative relationship with key individuals at your CRO and ensure that they are invested in the science of your products as much as you are." Heyrman agrees: "Make sure your CRO is large enough to conduct the program and yet small enough to care and understand that a ten-person company and the compound matter in their business as well."

Overall, a **CRO partner should feel like an extension to the emerging biotech's team.** With the help of a dedicated project manager, who works as a constant point of contact between the two teams, transparency and a solid organizational structure can be maintained.

EXPERIENCE

"Select a partner that suits your strategy," says Hansman. "Challenging science coupled with complex regulatory frameworks require an experienced CRO. Selecting the appropriate partner with drug development expertise and regulatory experience is crucial to ensure robust study designs to facilitate efficient clinical trial execution, impactful agency and site interactions, and regulatory submissions." When choosing a partner, emerging biotechs should make sure that the CRO has the right experts to support them throughout the drug development process^[27]. The CRO's experience and understanding of the science should also be reflected in past completed projects^[12]. In fact, scientific expertise will also show whether the CRO will prioritize the emerging biotech's product development and support it throughout the drug development process.

"CROs should also have experience in the necessary therapeutic areas," Hansman adds. "It is critical to have advanced knowledge of the disease, endpoints, sites, patient access, and so on. Drug development expertise can further help the development of regulatory strategies and documents, as well as facilitate impactful authority interactions allowing for accelerated clinical development and authorization."

FLEXIBILITY

"One of the things I have learned over the years is to be open-minded," says Heyrman. "It is very important not to desperately stick to the path you're on, but to think of alternative scenarios in case things don't work out the way they were planned. Ask yourself: What is your backup plan? What is the backup plan for your backup plan?"

In a continuously changing and challenging industry, flexibility is incredibly important^[27]. This also includes the flexibility of a partner. **A CRO must be able to help an emerging biotech find solutions to issues and adapt to unexpected problems.** "Find a CRO that develops proactive contingency plans versus reactive ones that include backup sites and even backup countries," Masih adds.

Moreover, choosing a partner who is a full-service provider versus a functional provider — where you choose services à la carte — can increase the probability of success. When your CRO can fully engage with its medical, regulatory, and operational teams and work under a single set of standard operating procedures, you should expect higher levels of quality and efficiency.

In a full-service approach, all services are coordinated under one roof, providing an accountable platform that reduces the need for duplicate management oversight. The more partners involved, the higher the chance for conflicts in the drug development process. This can impact costs and milestone success. The CRO can help strike the balance of disciplined execution and flexibility.

RELATIONSHIPS

For an emerging biotech it can be hard to select the right sites and get in touch with suitable key opinion leaders (KOLs)^[24]. **The right CRO partner, on the other hand, will have well-established and recent relationships with sites and KOLs.** Furthermore, a partner should have a practical approach to recruiting, such as knowledge of sites with the right patients and the right mix of KOLs, as well as access to real-world global data^[27].

"For the foreseeable future, clinical trials will continue to rely on motivated principal investigators (PIs) to recruit study participants, ensure their well-being and safety, and to diligently execute the study protocol," says Nicholas Alp, M.D., Ph.D., FRCP, FACC, Senior Vice President, Cardiovascular, Medical Department at Medpace. "PIs are the linchpins of clinical research, and nothing happens in a study without their buy-in. Establishing and nurturing relationships with these key professionals should be a core competency of a CRO partnering with biotech."

GOVERNANCE

Finding the right balance between structure and action is crucial in a drug development partner, as too much structure results in a loss of time and resources. Here, it is important that the CRO has a streamlined decisionmaking process^[27]. "Look for a CRO that empowers its project management team to focus on study milestones rather than revenue generation, and ensure that the CRO leadership is fully engaged with your study and makes it their priority," Masih adds.





THE COLLABORATION MOMENTUM OF MODERN BIOTECH



"Work in close collaboration with your CRO, invest in them, give them knowledge of the development program. Knowledge is empowerment. Keep things as transparent as possible, involve all key stakeholders in processes that affect them, and work collaboratively."

- Andrew Masih, Vice President, Clinical Trial Management

By 2023, an estimated 49% of clinical development will be outsourced to CROs, representing a 12% increase in market penetration rate since 2018^[28]. The global CRO market is expected to reach a value of \$87.7B that same year^[28]. These figures are unsurprising as small and emerging biotech companies struggle with looming costs and the pressure to accelerate time-to-market while expanding their pipelines, keeping up with novel scientific discoveries, and improving drug efficacy and safety^[26].

With their expertise in clinical research and design, a network of experts, KOLs, sites, and investments in the latest technologies, CROs can support emerging biotechs during the drug development process^[26]. Moreover, while CROs work on the organization and execution of the various studies, emerging biotechs are freed to focus on other pressing issues, such as collecting more funding and reaching different milestones.

Although drug failure rates remain very high, the collaboration between emerging biotechs and CROs will increase the chances for successful drug development^[29]. CROs can help mitigate risks by anticipating possible pitfalls and using their experience to navigate emerging biotechs through the complex processes of drug development and regulatory affairs^[29]. No doubt, collaborations within the biotechnology industry will be increasing in the future. By 2023, ~**49**% of clinical development will be outsourced to CROs

Representing 12% Increase in market penetration since 2018

In parallel, the global CRO market is expected to reach **\$87.7B** in the same year



THE MEDPACE SOLUTION



As a top-10 CRO, Medpace's mission is to accelerate the development of safe and effective medical therapeutics worldwide. The company has grown organically over the past 30+ years, ensuring the stability of leadership, processes, technology, and expertise. At the center of their expertise lies a unique culture that fosters a partnership atmosphere, important for emerging biotechs with limited resources and sometimes limited experience.

"What is unique about Medpace is that we have a real passion to bring new therapeutic modalities to patients in need," says Heyrman. "We only work where we are confident that we can truly add value. All of our executions start in the medical science. We bring with us a sense of responsibility and ownership. We really want to be the right partner, the seamless extension of the sponsor team, to help them get their new therapeutic modality to market."

Medpace's full-service capabilities include extensive expertise in defined therapeutic areas that promote better trial designs and the acceleration of clinical development. The company's team includes regulatory experts, who can support emerging biotechs in all issues related to the regulatory authorities, be it communication, document creation, or filing. Furthermore, Medpace's global reach and experience is crucial for navigating cultural and regulatory differences across countries. This is especially important when it comes to advanced therapies and genetically modified organisms where complex processes are involved and there is a lack of harmonization across regions.

"We have the culture and the organizational structure to quickly address unexpected issues. Additionally, our foundation in the medical sciences and our sense of responsibility and ownership gives biotechs a meaningful advantage," Heyrman adds. "Together with the sponsor, we are constantly striving to reach important milestones. This kind of partnership allows us to execute better; it also sets us apart."

Medpace is committed to **Making the Complex Seamless™** by providing uncompromising commitment to your clinical research and the highest level of ethical standards and performance, which translates to executing your trials on time, on budget.

LIST OF REFERENCES

- Global Newswire. Biotechnology Market Size, Share, Growth, Forecast 2021-2030 [Internet]. 18 Jan 2022. Available: <u>https://www.globenewswire.</u> <u>com/news-release/2022/01/18/2368681/0/en/</u> <u>Biotechnology-Market-Size-to-Surpass-US-1-683-</u> 52-Bn-by-2030.html
- 2. IBIS World. Global Biotechnology Industry: Market Research, Report [Internet]. 25 May 2021. Available: <u>https://www.ibisworld.com/global/</u> <u>market-research-reports/global-biotechnology-</u> <u>industry/</u>
- **3.** Mullard A. 2021 FDA Drug Approvals. Nat Rev Drug Discov. 2022;21:83–88.
- 4. 50 of 2021's Best-Selling Pharmaceuticals. In: Drug Discovery & Development [Internet]. 29 March 2022. Available: <u>https://www. drugdiscoverytrends.com/50-of-2021s-bestselling-pharmaceuticals</u>
- Smith J. This Year's Nobel Prizes Highlight Advances in Biotechnology. In: Labiotech.eu [Internet]. 4 Oct 2018. Available: <u>https://labiotech.</u> eu/medical/nobel-prizes-biotechnology/
- Kotsev V. 2020 Chemistry Nobel Prize Awarded to CRISPR-Cas9 Pioneers. In: Labiotech.eu [Internet]. 9 Oct 2020. Available: <u>https://www.labiotech.eu/</u> trends-news/crispr-cas9-nobel-2020/
- 7. Which Are The Largest Biotech Companies In The World? In: WorldAtlas [Internet]. 20 March 2017. Available: <u>https://www.worldatlas.com/articles/</u><u>which-are-the-largest-biotech-companies-in-the-</u>world.html
- 8. Fraser L. Cloning Insulin. In: Genentech [Internet]. 7 Apr 2016. Available: <u>https://www.gene.com/</u> <u>stories/cloning-insulin</u>
- 9. Warner E. Cambridge Antibody Technology: The History of the UK's Best Biotech. In: Labiotech.eu [Internet]. 8 Jun 2017. Available: <u>https://labiotech.</u> eu/interviews/greg-winter-interview-history

- **10. IQVIA.** Global Trends in R&D 2022: Overview Through 2021 [Internet]. 10 Feb 2022. Available: <u>https://www.iqvia.com/insights/the-iqvia-</u> institute/reports/global-trends-in-r-and-d-2022
- 11. PhRMA. Medicines in Development: Rare Diseases. A Report on Orphan Medicines in the Pipeline [Internet]. 15 Dec 2021. Available: https://www.phrma.org/-/media/Project/PhRMA/ PhRMA-Org/PhRMA-Org/PDF/MID-Reports/ MID-Rare-Diseases-2.pdf
- **12. Post S.** The Rise of Orphan Drugs: A New Paradigm for the Future. In: Labiotech.eu [Internet]. 18 Feb 2019. Available: <u>https://labiotech.eu/sponsored/</u> orphan-drugs-development-future/
- **13. Langhauser K.** Rising Tides of Orphan Drugs. In: Pharma Manufacturing [Internet]. 10 Jun 2021. Available: <u>https://www.pharmamanufacturing.com/</u> articles/2021/rising-tides-of-orphan-drugs/
- **14. Straus M.** 2022 Pipeline Report: Capitalizing on Opportunity. In: PharmExec.com [Internet]. 9 Dec 2021. Available: <u>https://www.pharmexec.</u> <u>com/view/2022-pipeline-report-capitalizing-on-opportunity</u>
- **15. Aitken M.** The Resilience of R&D: Pharma Posted Record Output in 2021. In: PharmExec. com [Internet]. 8 March 2022. Available: <u>https://www.pharmexec.com/view/the-resilience-of-r-d-pharma-posted-record-output-in-2021</u>
- Scannell JW, Blanckley A, Boldon H, Warrington
 B. Diagnosing the Decline in Pharmaceutical R&D Efficiency. Nat Rev Drug Discov. 2012;11: 191– 200.
- **17. Herper M.** The Cost Of Developing Drugs Is Insane. That Paper That Says Otherwise Is Insanely Bad. In: Forbes [Internet]. 16 Oct 2017. Available: <u>https://www.forbes.com/sites/</u> <u>matthewherper/2017/10/16/the-cost-of-</u> <u>developing-drugs-is-insane-a-paper-that-argued-</u> <u>otherwise-was-insanely-bad/</u>

- 18. Schlander M, Hernandez-Villafuerte K, Cheng CY, Mestre-Ferrandiz J, Baumann M. How Much Does It Cost to Research and Develop a New Drug? A Systematic Review and Assessment. PharmacoEconomics. 2021:39;1243–1269
- **19. Hurtado-Chong A, Joeris A, Hess D, Blauth M.** Improving Site Selection in Clinical Studies: Aa Standardised, Objective, Multistep Method and First Experience Results. BMJ Open. 2017;7: e014796.
- 20. Lesser N, Terry C, Wu J, Mulder J, Dondarski K. In the Face of Uncertainty: A Challenging Future for Biopharmaceutical Innovation. In: Deloitte [Internet]. Available: <u>https://www2.deloitte. com/content/dam/Deloitte/lu/Documents/</u> <u>life-sciences-health-care/us_consulting_</u> Inthefaceofuncertainty_040614.pdf
- **21. Domonkos D.** Uncertainty in Innovation in the Biotech-Pharmaceutical Industry. Period Polytech Soc Manag Sci. 2010;18: 21–30.
- **22. Fernández CR.** Top 5 Reasons Why Biotech Startups Fail -- and How to Avoid Them. In: Labiotech.eu [Internet]. 27 Nov 2018. Available: <u>https://labiotech.eu/tops/biotech-startups-failure-advice/</u>
- 23. Rhyne LC. Business Model Design for Biotechnology Firms. In: International Journal of Business Innovation and Research [Internet]. 2009;3:298–310. Available: <u>https://www. inderscienceonline.com/doi/abs/10.1504/</u> JJBIR.2009.024181

- 24. Dixon J. Begin With the End in Mind. In: Trade Secrets [Internet]. 18 May 2012. Available: <u>http://</u> <u>blogs.nature.com/tradesecrets/2012/05/18/</u> <u>begin-with-the-end-in-mind</u>
- **25. Milmo S.** The Role of Regulatory Advice in Drug Development [Internet]. 2 April 2015. Available: <u>http://www.pharmtech.com/role-regulatory-</u> advice-drug-development
- 26. Van Mol R. Industry Joins Forces to Improve Collaboration Between Sponsors and CROs. J Clin Trials. 2018;10:56–57.
- 27. Molho D. Partnering with the Right CRO is a Winning Strategy for Companies Big and Small. In: Drug Discovery World [Internet]. 5 Oct 2013. Available: <u>https://www.ddw-online.com/ business/p216817-partnering-with-the-rightcro-is-a-winning-strategy-for-companies-big-andsmallfall-13.html</u>
- **28. Kadiwar K, Jacob I, Groden L, Kersse B.** CRO Sector: M&A Drivers and Market Trends Q1 2022. In: Results [Internet]. 23 Feb 2022. Available: <u>https://resultsig.com/wp-content/</u> <u>uploads/2022/02/CRO-sector-MA-drivers-and-</u> market-trends-Q1-2022-Results-Healthcare.pdf
- **29. Montana J, Hop C.E.C.A.** Brothers in Arms: Biopharma and CROs Collaborating in Early Drug Discovery. In: Charles River Laboratories [Internet]. 2015. Available: <u>https://www.criver.com/sites/</u> default/filesresourcesBrothersinArmsBio PharmaandCROscollaboratinginearlydrugdiscov

ARE YOU SEARCHING FOR THE RIGHT PARTNER FOR YOUR DRUG DEVELOPMENT PROJECT?

Discover more about Medpace at medpace.com Or get in touch with the company's experts at medpace.com/contact